
 
 

 

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
10 FRONT STREET • EXETER, NH • 03833-3792 • (603) 778-0591 •FAX 772-4709 

www.exeternh.gov 
 

LEGAL NOTICE  
EXETER PLANNING BOARD 

AGENDA 
 
 
The Exeter Planning Board will meet on Thursday, June 27, 2024 at 7:00 P.M. in the Nowak 
Room of the Town Office Building located at 10 Front Street, Exeter, New Hampshire, to 
consider the following: 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  May 23, June 6 and June 13, 2024   
 
NEW BUSINESS:  PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A request from the RiverWoods Group for a preliminary site plan consultation for the proposed 
construction of a new healthcare center intended to consolidate the existing healthcare 
components of the three RiverWoods campuses into a centralized facility to be located on the 
property at the intersection White Oak Drive and NH Route 111 (Kingston Road).  The subject 
property is located in the R-1, Low Density Residential zoning district.  Tax Map Parcels #97-23.  
PB Case #24-6.   

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

• Master Plan Discussion 
• Land Use Regulations Review  
• Field Modifications 
• Bond and/or Letter of Credit Reductions and Releases  

 
 
EXETER PLANNING BOARD  
Langdon J. Plumer, Chairman  
 
 
Posted 06/14/24:   Exeter Town Office and Town of Exeter website 
 

http://www.exeternh.gov/


Town of Exeter Planning Board May 23, 2024 Draft Minutes 
 
 

    
Page 1 of 5 

 

TOWN OF EXETER 1 
PLANNING BOARD 2 

NOWAK MEETING ROOM 3 
10 FRONT STREET 4 

MAY 23, 2024 5 
DRAFT MINUTES 6 

  7:00 PM 7 
I.  PRELIMINARIES: 8 
 9 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT BY ROLL CALL:  Chair Langdon Plumer, Vice-Chair Aaron Brown, John 10 
Grueter, Jennifer Martel, and Nancy Belanger Select Board Representative  11 
 12 
STAFF PRESENT:  Town Planner Dave Sharples 13 
 14 
II.  CALL TO ORDER:  Chair Plumer called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM and introduced the 15 
members. 16 
 17 
III.  OLD BUSINESS 18 
 19 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 20 
 21 
March 28, 2024 22 
 23 
Mr. Grueter motioned to approve the March 28, 2024 meeting minutes.  Ms. Belanger seconded the 24 
motion.  A vote was taken, all were in favor, the motion passed 5-0-0. 25 
 26 
IV. NEW BUSINESS: PUBLIC HEARINGS 27 

1.  The application of Meniscus Financial Holdings, LLC for site plan review and Wetlands and 28 
Shoreland Conditional Use Permits for the proposed construction of a commercial vehicle storage 29 
area, a 22,500 S.F. accessory storage building and associated site improvements on the property 30 
located at 127 Portsmouth Avenue. 31 
C-2, Highway Commercial zoning district 32 
Tax Map Parcel #52-112-2 33 
Planning Board Case #24-1 34 

Chair Plumer read out loud the public hearing notice and asked Town Planner Dave Sharples if the case 35 
was ready for review purposes.  Mr. Sharples indicated the case was ready. 36 

Ms. Belanger motioned to open the applications.  Mr. Grueter seconded the motion.  A vote was 37 
taken, all were in favor, the motion passed 5-0-0. 38 

Mr. Sharples indicated that the applicant is seeking site plan review, and wetlands and shoreland 39 
conditional use permits for a 22,500 SF accessory building and commercial vehicle storage area together 40 



Town of Exeter Planning Board May 23, 2024 Draft Minutes 
 
 

    
Page 2 of 5 

 

with associated site improvements.   Mr. Sharples noted that the applicant provided plans and 41 
supporting documents dated February 13, 2024 for review and revised plans and supporting documents 42 
were submitted on May 15, 2024. 43 

The applicants met with the Board and Conservation Commission in June/July 2023 for preliminary 44 
review.  The Technical Review Committee (TRC) reviewed the applications on March 7, 2024 and April 45 
11, 2024 and provided comment letters.  The Town’s engineer, Underwood Engineering (UEI) provided 46 
comment letters.   47 

Mr. Sharples noted there was a site walk before the Conservation Commission’s May 14, 2024 meeting 48 
where the applicant presented their conditional use permit applications.  The Commission voted to table 49 
the applications to their June meeting so that UEI could provide their report on the revised plans.  Mr. 50 
Sharples recommended the Board hold off on reviewing the conditional use permit criteria until it 51 
receives the Conservation Commission’s recommendation. 52 

Christian Smith of Beals Associates presented the application and noted Tim Foss and Larry Foss were 53 
also present.  Mr. Smith posted the plans and showed the existing site with the proposed dry storage 54 
building for parts, and the connection with GTE Road.  He described changes since TRC review for 55 
porous pavement in the parking area rather than the original large under chamber that had been 56 
proposed.  He described the bioretention trench to collect roof runoff and fire truck turnaround.  He 57 
described the overhead door and loading and unloading area and extension of a small bioretention area. 58 
Mr. Smith noted catch basins and underdrain connection to a main line and existing stormwater 59 
treatment pond.  He showed the location of the community reservoir and stated that no stormwater will 60 
get to the reservoir from the site. 61 

Mr. Smith addressed traffic concerns onto Route 33 noted by the UEI letter and pedestrian traffic 62 
concerns from the shop to the new display area. 63 

Mr. Foss provided a brief history of the parcel sold by his father and grandfather, Foss Farm and the 64 
lumber area where the barn was across the street. 65 

Mr. Grueter asked about any easement and cars parking on the road. Mr. Foss noted employees park on 66 
the road.  Chair Plumer asked about the road owned by Sylvania and Mr. Smith indicated it was a private 67 
road with an easement. 68 

Mr. Smith addressed the three comments in the UEI memo, #16, #17 and #18 on page two.  Mr. Smith 69 
indicated the site was not a high traffic area and customers would be accompanied by a salesman but if 70 
a crosswalk would help Mr. Foss had no problem.  Vice-Chair Brown noted that it was anticipated to be 71 
active with vehicular traffic.  Mr. Smith noted staff would bring vehicles back and forth.  Mr. Grueter 72 
indicated it could be busy at 5 PM when traffic is leaving Osram.  Mr. Smith noted two vehicles passed in 73 
45 minutes during the site walk with the Conservation Commission.  Mr. Smith noted a stop sign could 74 
be put in if there was any issue with trucks and vehicles turning left from 108 into GTE Road.  Mr. 75 
Sharples requested a traffic memo and noted he had not received that yet.  Mr. Smith will doublecheck. 76 

Ms. Martel asked about ADA compliance with the crosswalk and Mr. Smith noted there was no curbing 77 
or tip down, it would just be painted.   She asked about the area that appeared to have a fence and Mr. 78 
Smith indicated it was erosion control, there was no fence.  Ms. Martel asked about striping and Mr. 79 



Town of Exeter Planning Board May 23, 2024 Draft Minutes 
 
 

    
Page 3 of 5 

 

Smith explained why there was no intention to designate parking areas outside of two for people 80 
accessing the building so there would be more flexibility in how vehicles were stored.  Ms. Martel asked 81 
about the overhead door and Mr. Smith noted there may be larger items delivered that would not fit 82 
through the door.  Ms. Martel asked if those larger items would be delivered by a truck and Mr. Smith 83 
noted the main deliveries go to the dealership and so the largest truck would be a pick-up truck.  Ms. 84 
Martel asked about large trees being cut and noted she would rather see replacement trees with 3-3.5” 85 
caliper go in.  She noted gray birch may be hard to find in single stem but noted there are multi-stem 86 
with 12-14’ height.  She noted it was a shame the willow tree that had been there so long was being 87 
removed and while she would never recommend a willow tree otherwise, noted it would be a nice 88 
replacement for the existing tree.  She noted that any exposed areas in front could have shrubs planted. 89 

Ms. Belanger asked if there would be employees stationed at the storage building and Mr. Smith 90 
indicated no, that the building would be locked and unlocked when parts were loaded or retrieved. 91 

Mr. Sharples noted that architectural plans would need to be reviewed but right off he noticed some 92 
standards in the site plan regulations that had not been met such as the pitch of the roof. 93 

Chair Plumer asked about lighting and hours after 10 PM that the lights may be on.  Mr. Smith noted 94 
there were two that would be on motion sensors.  He noted the two on GTE road were existing. 95 

Ms. Belanger asked if people would park on the side of the road and whether they would consider no 96 
parking signs along the road for people coming to see cars and an after-hours gate.  She noted she 97 
noticed during a parade staging that the area was very dark. 98 

Mr. Sharples recommended a site walk and stated he would notify the Conservation Commission.  He 99 
requested the area be staked out.  The Board agreed to have a site walk on Thursday, June 6th at 8 AM. 100 

Chair Plumer opened the hearing to comments and questions from the public at 7:56 PM.   101 

Sally Oxnard noted she was on the Tree Committee and appreciated Ms. Martel’s comments.  She 102 
indicated she was also a birder and recommended bird friendly glass which is commercially available and 103 
would lessen bird strikes.  Ms. Martel noted on another project this morning there were three dead 104 
birds on the ground and it was possibly the reflection on the glass from the new LED lighting across the 105 
street. 106 

Chair Plumer closed the hearing to public comment at 8 PM. 107 

Vice-Chair Brown motioned to continue Planning Board Case #24-1 to the Planning Board meeting on 108 
June 13, 2024 at 7 PM.  Ms. Belanger seconded the motion.  A vote was taken, all were in favor, the 109 
motion passed 5-0-0. 110 

V.  OTHER BUSINESS 111 
 112 

• Election of Officers 113 
 114 
Mr. Grueter motioned to nominate Langdon Plumer as Chair of the Planning Board and Aaron 115 
Brown as Vice-Chair.  Ms. Belanger seconded the motion.  A vote was taken, all were in favor, 116 
the motion passed 5-0-0. 117 



Town of Exeter Planning Board May 23, 2024 Draft Minutes 
 
 

    
Page 4 of 5 

 

Ms. Belanger motioned to nominate John Grueter as Clerk of the Planning Board.  Vice-Chair 118 
Brown seconded the motion.  A vote was taken, Mr. Grueter abstained.  The motion passed 4-119 
0-1. 120 
 121 
• Master Plan Discussion 122 
 123 
Mr. Sharples reported that the Committee met and Rockingham Planning Commission came to 124 
discuss the bike and pedestrian plan and would like to meet with the Board and Select Board in 125 
June. 126 
 127 
Ms. Martel asked about the parking study and Mr. Sharples noted that the winter parking plan 128 
was questioned, and the Select Board reached out to DPW and hasn’t heard.  Mr. Sharples will 129 
follow up on that. 130 
 131 
• Field Modifications 132 
 133 
Mr. Sharples provided a handout concerning the Watson Road approval for an open space 134 
residential subdivision.  He noted the marked 20’ open space access easement and proposed 135 
access to Map 40-15.  He noted Kristen Murphy the Conservation and Sustainability Planner did 136 
not know anything about that and Mr. Sharples did not believe it was a Board condition of 137 
approval.  He noted he found no reference to it in the minutes and Vice-Chair Brown reviewed 138 
the recordings of the meeting and found no reference.  He noted if no one on the Board had any 139 
issues he would deal with it.  He will email Ms. English and Mr. Cameron to see if they recall any 140 
mention of it. 141 
 142 
Ms. Martel indicated she did not believe the tree lines were adhered to.  Mr. Sharples explained 143 
that he will doublecheck but in theory Planning limits the developer’s build to try to minimize it 144 
up front, but there is nothing to keep future owners from cutting, although most will leave it as 145 
is. 146 
 147 
• Bond and/or Letter of Credit Reductions and Release 148 

Mr. Sharples reported that Barbara has been busy releasing another batch of funds held from 149 
site plan review and inspection funds and thanked her for her effort.  Chair Plumer noted there 150 
should be a system to trigger release.  Mr. Sharples agreed that could become part of site plan 151 
review or certificate of occupancy issuance. 152 

• Ms. Martel noted that Ms. Oxnard shared that the Tree Committee has a list of 153 
approved trees and a lot of applicants ask.  She would encourage biodiversity and 154 
recommended that applicants should be encouraged to view the list on the website and be 155 
reminded that it exists. 156 
 157 
• Ms. Belanger asked about getting the updated zoning ordinance and suggested the tree 158 
list could be added to their books. 159 



Town of Exeter Planning Board May 23, 2024 Draft Minutes 
 
 

    
Page 5 of 5 

 

 160 

VII.  TOWN PLANNER’S ITEMS 161 

Mr. Sharples reviewed CIP projects.  He noted the new police and fire substation was approved and the 162 
contractor and designer are working together early on.  Mr. Grueter asked about the potential for 163 
expansion and Mr. Sharples noted the site was going to provide 20-40 years of normal growth.  Mr. 164 
Sharples reported the solar array construction at the Transfer Station is beginning. Ms. Belanger asked 165 
about coverage with ExeterTV and Mr. Sharples noted they are interviewing him.  He noted the solar 166 
array will be the largest municipally owned and operated array.  Mr. Grueter asked about buy in from 167 
community electric.  Mr. Sharples explained coverage of energy use for town facilities at about 92% and 168 
creating renewable energy credits to sell.  He used as an example the requirement in MA that 20% of 169 
energy use be renewable energy and they can go on the market to buy credits to meet that requirement 170 
by buying them somewhere else.  He anticipated a revenue stream of $85,000 in the current market. 171 

VIII.  CHAIRPERSON’S ITEMS 172 

Chair Plumer noted the need for volunteers on the Planning Board and other Town Committees.  He 173 
noted if volunteers were interested, to come to a meeting and speak with the Planning office or Pam 174 
McEvoy.  He spoke to the importance of residents serving, as the Town could not run without those 175 
volunteers. 176 

IX.  PB REPRESENTATIVE’S REPORT ON “OTHER COMMITTEE ACTIVITY” 177 

X.  ADJOURN 178 

Ms. Belanger motioned to adjourn the meeting at 8:35 PM.  Ms. Martel seconded the motion.  179 
A vote was taken, all were in favor, the motion passed unanimously. 180 

Respectfully submitted. 181 

Daniel Hoijer, 182 
Recording Secretary 183 
Via Exeter TV 184 



Town of Exeter Planning Board June 6, 2024 Draft Minutes 
 
 

    
Page 1 of 1 

 

TOWN OF EXETER 1 
PLANNING BOARD 2 

131 PORTSMOUTH AVE – FOSS MOTORS 3 
SITE WALK 4 

June 6, 2024 5 
DRAFT MINUTES 6 

  8:00 AM 7 
 8 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT BY ROLL CALL:  Chair Langdon Plumer, Vice-Chair Aaron Brown, John 9 
Grueter, Gwen English, and Nancy Belanger Select Board Representative  10 
 11 
STAFF PRESENT:  Town Planner Dave Sharples 12 
 13 
PUBLIC PRESENT:  John Lorden (Beals Associates), Doug Reymore (Jewett Construction) and Tim Foss 14 
(Foss Motors) 15 
 16 
II.  CALL TO ORDER:  Chair Plumer called the meeting to order at 8:00 AM and introduced the 17 
members. 18 
 19 
III.  FOSS MOTORS SITE WALK 20 
 21 
The members walked the site and were shown the access, parking areas, buildings, and wetlands.   22 

No motions made or action taken.  23 

Chair Plumer opened the hearing to comments and questions from the public at 7:56 PM.   24 

The Chair adjourned the meeting at 8:39 AM. 25 

Respectfully submitted, 26 

Dave Sharples 27 
Town Planner  28 



Town of Exeter Planning Board June 13, 2024 Draft Minutes 
 
 

    
Page 1 of 3 

 

TOWN OF EXETER 1 
PLANNING BOARD 2 

NOWAK MEETING ROOM 3 
10 FRONT STREET 4 

JUNE 13, 2024 5 
DRAFT MINUTES 6 

  7:00 PM 7 
I.  PRELIMINARIES: 8 
 9 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT BY ROLL CALL:  Chair Langdon Plumer, Vice-Chair Aaron Brown, Clerk, 10 
John Grueter, Gwen English and Nancy Belanger Select Board Representative  11 
 12 
STAFF PRESENT:   13 
 14 
II.  CALL TO ORDER:  Chair Plumer called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM and introduced the 15 
members. 16 
 17 
III.  OLD BUSINESS 18 
 19 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 20 
 21 
May 23, 2024 - Tabled 22 
 23 
Ms. Belanger motioned to table approval of the May 23, 2024 meeting minutes until the next meeting.  24 
Vice-Chair Brown seconded the motion.  A vote was taken, all were in favor, the motion passed 5-0-0. 25 
 26 
IV. NEW BUSINESS: PUBLIC HEARINGS 27 

1.  The continued public hearing on the application of Meniscus Financial Holdings, LLC for site plan 28 
review and Wetlands and Shoreland Conditional Use Permits for the proposed construction of a 29 
commercial vehicle storage area, a 22,500 S.F. accessory storage building and associated site 30 
improvements on the property located at 127 Portsmouth Avenue. 31 
C-2, Highway Commercial zoning district 32 
Tax Map Parcel #52-112-2 33 
PB Case #24-4.   34 

Chair Plumer indicated that the applicant has asked for a continuance. 35 

Ms. Belanger motioned to continue the hearing on the application to the Planning Board’s July 11, 36 
2024 meeting at 7:00 PM.  Ms. English seconded the motion.  A vote was taken, all were in favor, the 37 
motion passed 5-0-0. 38 

V.  OTHER BUSINESS 39 
 40 



Town of Exeter Planning Board June 13, 2024 Draft Minutes 
 
 

    
Page 2 of 3 

 

• Master Plan Discussion 41 
 42 
Mr. Grueter indicated that the Rockingham Planning Commission will be going to the Select 43 
Board to discuss the bike and pedestrian plan. 44 
 45 
• Field Modifications 46 
 47 
• Bond and/or Letter of Credit Reductions and Release 48 
 49 

VII.  TOWN PLANNER’S ITEMS 50 

VIII.  CHAIRPERSON’S ITEMS 51 

Chair Plumer noted that the amended books have been provided with changes resulting from March’s 52 
voting. 53 

Chair Plumer indicated that the Rockingham Planning Commission had two speakers concerning rail trail 54 
growth.  Mr. Grueter discussed the future plans for the rail trail on the seacoast to go from Hampton to 55 
Rye to Portsmouth, once the connection through Seabrook is figured out, possibly going to Miami some 56 
day. 57 

Mr. Grueter noted that he wrote to two senators concerning the old Sullivan Bridge which is no longer 58 
viable and recommended the funds be used instead toward connecting rail trails.  He noted how they 59 
connect to local restaurants in Florida and are good for the economy.  The Board discussed the greater 60 
safety for riders on rail trails especially due to small bike lanes and drivers who text when driving. 61 

IX.  PB REPRESENTATIVE’S REPORT ON “OTHER COMMITTEE ACTIVITY” 62 

Ms. English reported that Kristen Murphy, Exeter’s Conservation & Sustainability Planner received the 63 
Hayden Award at the Rockingham Planning Commission’s annual dinner and award’s night.  The award 64 
recognizes those who have made a significant contribution to the community or to conservation and 65 
planning. 66 

Vice-Chair Brown noted that now that Mr. Grueter is serving as clerk, he is eligible to be a member on 67 
the Rockingham Planning Commission.  68 

Ms. Belanger announced that there will be an All Board’s Meeting on Tuesday, June 25, 2024 at 6:30 69 
PM. 70 

Vice-Chair Brown expressed concerns about having conversations about zoning variances that are 71 
consistently granted. 72 

  73 



Town of Exeter Planning Board June 13, 2024 Draft Minutes 
 
 

    
Page 3 of 3 

 

X.  ADJOURN 74 

Ms. Belanger motioned to adjourn the meeting at 7:30 PM.  Mr. Grueter seconded the 75 
motion.  A vote was taken, all were in favor, the motion passed unanimously. 76 

Respectfully submitted. 77 

Daniel Hoijer, 78 
Recording Secretary 79 
Via Exeter TV 80 



             TOWN OF EXETER 
                    Planning and Building Department 
         10 FRONT STREET • EXETER, NH • 03833-3792 • (603) 778-0591 •FAX 772-4709 
                                                          www.exeternh.gov 
 

Date:  June 17, 2024              

To:  Planning Board 

From:  Dave Sharples, Town Planner 

Re:  The RiverWoods Group            PB Case #24-6   
 
The Applicant is requesting a Preliminary Conceptual Consultation with the Planning 
Board to discuss the proposed construction of a new healthcare center intended to 
consolidate the existing healthcare components of the three RiverWoods campuses into 
a centralized facility to be located on the property at the intersection White Oak Drive and 
NH Route 111 (Kingston Road).  The subject property is located in the R-1, Low Density 
Residential zoning district and is identified as Tax Map Parcel #97-23.     

Attached please find a letter of explanation and conceptual site plan provided by Altus 
Engineering, Inc. dated June 6th, 2024 for your review.    
 
Please note that the applicant is requesting a Preliminary Conceptual Consultation and 
not a formal application.  As such, abutters have not been notified and the discussion of 
the Planning Board and applicant can be “in conception form only and in general terms 
such as the desirability of types of development and proposals under the Master Plan.”  I 
have enclosed the relevant section of our regulations pertaining to this type of review.   
 
Thank You. 

 

Enclosures - 3 

 

http://www.exeternh.gov/


   

Civil 
Site Planning 

Environmental 
Engineering 

133 Court Street 
Portsmouth, NH 
03801-4413 

 

Tel:  (603) 433-2335       E-mail: Altus@altus-eng.com 

 

June 6, 2024 
 
Dave Sharples, Town Planner 
Planning Department, Town of Exeter 
10 Front Street 
Exeter, NH  03833 
 
Re: Preliminary Consultation 
 RiverWoods at Exeter 

Assessor’s Map 97, Lot 23 
 7 Riverwoods Drive 
 Exeter, New Hampshire 
 Altus Project No. 5015 
  
 
Dear Mr. Sharples, 
 
On behalf of the Applicant, RiverWoods Group, Altus Engineering respectfully submits a request 
for a preliminary site plan consultation with the Planning Board on the above referenced project.  
Located at the intersection of White Oak Drive and NH 111, the site currently hosts the 
RiverWoods administration building known as Campus Crossing, a park, and a vacant single-
family home together with some sections of wetland, woodland and a natural gas transmission 
line.  The plan contemplates a new state of the art healthcare center intended to relocate the existing 
healthcare components of the three RiverWoods campuses into a single centralized facility.   
 
We hope to entertain the Board’s input on the project at the next available hearing.  Please call me 
if you have any questions or need any additional information.   
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
ALTUS ENGINEERING 

   
Erik B. Saari  
Vice President  
 
ebs/5015.01-APP-Sketch-CovLtr-060624 

  
Enclosures 
 



RiverWoods Exeter - Consolidated Properties

"The Woods"

"The Ridge"

"The Boulders"

Valued Customer
Text Box
"The Woods"

Valued Customer
Text Box
"The Ridge"

Valued Customer
Text Box
"The Boulders"

Valued Customer
Text Box
"Campus Crossing"












	AGENDA
	PlanSet  06-06-24.pdf
	5015-SITE-060324
	5015-OVERALL-060324
	5015-ExCond.pdf
	23-2014-EXIST-SH1-REV1-9-11-23
	23-2014-EXIST-SH2-REV1-9-11-23





